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Andreina Valbuena

From: Randy Becker
Sent: Thursday, July 23, 2020 3:14 PM
To: 'kyle@ctcarpentry.com'
Cc: Prosser, Adam L. (Adam.Prosser@wsp.com); Robert Hedden (rhedden@downesco.com); 

Baranowski, Joel; bostonleadengineer@fmglobal.com; 'fdibacco@ctcarpentry.com'; Joe 
Lucia; Andreina Valbuena; Ayles.William (WAyles@jcj.com); Scott Kozuch 
(skozuch@downesco.com); Scott Kozuch (skozuch@downesco.com); Sebastiano  
Uccello

Subject: FW: Project: BI-JA-465; York CI - RE: York Correctional Institution (BI-JA-465) - FM 
Global Documents - Index 000213.13 - 01 

Attachments: EPDM Shop Drawings.pdf; York CI Roof Section and Details.pdf; 07 71 00-002-0 (Fascia -
ANN) REV 1.pdf; RoofNav 328897-0-0.pdf; Anchor-Tite Drip Edge Detail 7.5 inch.pdf

Importance: High

Kyle: 
 
There are several attachments to this email. Your Roofing Contractor must fill in the information on the “RoofNav 
328897-0-0” attachment, and CT Carpentry must formally submit this in PMWeb ASAP. 
 
The FM Global-approved RoofNav 328897-0-0 roof section is described in the “RoofNav 328897-0-0” attachment and 
the modified “Anchor-Tite Drip Edge Detail 7.5 inch” attachment. The only difference from the Contract “York CI Section 
and Details” is that there are two 1/4” cement cover board layers, one on top of the metal deck and one on top of the 
rigid insulation, instead of one 1/2” cement cover board on top of the insulation. The vapor barrier is self-adhered to the 
first cover board below the insulation. This is the roof section that must be used for the doghouses on this project.  
 
The fully-adhered 60 mil EPDM membrane shall be as specified in Section 07 53 23. The 1-1/2” 20 gauge structural metal 
roof deck shall be furnished and installed by Engineered Building Products/MSR. Wood blocking is by CT Carpentry. 
 
The aluminum fascia submittal is attached (Approved As Noted) and you are to provide Almond color for all enclosures 
except for Building 8. Provide Bone White for Building 8. Provide the 7-1 /2” high 0.050 inch thick product in accordance 
with Section 07 71 00 (similar for the copings). 
 
The securement, fastening, and adhesion requirements are described below by the FM Global Engineer. These must be 
strictly followed. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Randy Becker 
Senior Construction Manager 
PDS Engineering & Construction, Inc. 
107 Old Windsor Road 
Bloomfield, CT 06002 
Office: 860-242-8586 
Cell: 860-978-6316 
 

 
Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer 
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Please visit www.pdsec.com for all your construction needs! 

 

From: Boston Lead Engineer [mailto:bostonleadengineer@Fmglobal.com]  
Sent: Thursday, July 23, 2020 2:26 PM 
To: Randy Becker; Boston Lead Engineer 
Cc: Prosser, Adam L. (Adam.Prosser@wsp.com); Robert Hedden (rhedden@downesco.com); Baranowski, Joel 
Subject: RE: Project: BI-JA-465; York CI - RE: York Correctional Institution (BI-JA-465) - FM Global Documents - Index 
000213.13 - 01  
 
Randy, 
 
It was good to speak to you today regarding the proposed small doghouse roof assemblies at the above listed 
location. As discussed the correct FM Approvals assembly based on the use of the RPI Royal Edge Reinforced 
EPDM and the required uplift at this site is RoofNav 328897-0-0.  I have attached a pdf file of the RoofNav 
listing. 
 
During our discussion today the following substitutions for this RoofNav assembly would be acceptable: 
 

 The coverboard can be a minimum of 1/4” thick and should be one of the products listed in the 
RoofNav approval. 

 The insulation board can be any thickness up to 6” and should be any FM Approved extruded 
polystyrene insulation board. 

 The vapor barrier can be any FM Approved self adhered vapor barrier installed directly above the 
thermal barrier. 

 The thermal barrier should be one of the products listed in the RoofNav approval installed above the 
steel deck and the thermal barrier should be a minimum of 1/4” thick. 

 
All other components should be in accordance with the RoofNav listing.   
 
You indicated that the fascia will be The Metal Era Anchor Tite Drip edge with a 7.5 inch face. Installation 
should be in accordance with the FM Approval listing 
 

 
Securement of the nailers should be in accordance with Data Sheet 1-49. The Data Sheet states that the 
securement should be as follows. Spacing of the two rows from Table 4 would be 18 inches on center. 
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Securement of the steel deck should be with any FM Approved steel deck fastener. Tributary area of the 
fastener should be a minimum of 6 sq., ft.  
 
Two other things that are in the RoofNav listing that the roofer needs to understand are the following: 
 

1. Fastening of the coverboard needs to be one insulation fastener per 1 sq. ft. 
2. The application of the roof cover adhesive should be 0.83 gallons per square for both the substrate and 

the underside of the roof cover. So a total of 1.66 gallons per square. 
 
These details are in the RoofNav listing when you look at in electronically at www.roofnav.com 
 
If you need anything else on this please let me know. 
 
Regards, 
 
John M. Ares  
Lead Engineer - FM Global  Boston Operations 
1175 Boston-Providence Turnpike  
P.O. Box 9102 
Norwood. MA 
02062 
Phone - 781-440-8241 
E-mail bostonleadengineer@fmglobal.com 
 
This electronic transmission, including any attachments, is the property of FM Global. It may contain information confidential in nature or subject 
to legal privilege. It may also include information developed to reduce the possibility of loss to property.  FM Global undertakes no duty to any 
party by providing such information.  Disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this transmission by anyone other than the 
intended recipient(s) is strictly prohibited  If you have received this message in error, please notify me by reply e-mail and delete the original 
transmission. 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Randy Becker <RandyB@pdsec.com>  
Sent: Thursday, July 16, 2020 3:33 PM 
To: Boston Lead Engineer <bostonleadengineer@Fmglobal.com> 
Cc: Prosser, Adam L. (Adam.Prosser@wsp.com) <Adam.Prosser@wsp.com>; Robert Hedden (rhedden@downesco.com) 
<rhedden@downesco.com> 
Subject: FW: Project: BI-JA-465; York CI - RE: York Correctional Institution (BI-JA-465) - FM Global Documents - Index 
000213.13 
Importance: High 
 

 

John: 
 
If we switch the location of the cement board and the rigid insulation layers in the attached roof section, will that meet 
the FM Global requirements? Please send me a standard FM Global roof section that includes: 
 

 60 mil EPDM membrane, fully adhered. 
 Air/Vapor barrier. 

EXTERNAL EMAIL 
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 ½” cement board. 
 Rigid insulation. 
 1-1/2” 20 gauge structural metal roof deck. 
 Drip edge (see attached detail). 

 
I need an answer on this soon, so I appreciate your help with this. We are flexible and these roofs are small (3’x 9’ typ.), 
so we can make any changes necessary to meet FM Global standards. 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions. 
 
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
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1. Product Name
VM60™ Sheet Waterproofing Membrane

2. Product Description 
Basic Use
The VM60 membrane is a tough, flexible, 
self-adhering sheet waterproofing 
membrane that is typically applied to 
vertical below-grade substrates such as 
foundation and tunnel walls of concrete 
and/or concrete block. Applications 
to wood and metal surfaces are also 
acceptable.

4 foot wide sheet widths allow fast and 
easy installation to relatively flat and even 
substrates. Narrow pre-cut widths are 
also available for detailing corners and 
penetrations, or strips can be field cut 
from full rolls.

A ½ inch wide selvage edge of 
rubberized asphalt membrane assures 
membrane-to-membrane seal at all inside 
lap edges. 

VM60 is formulated to be used in 
ambient temperatures greater than 25 
degrees F (-4°C).

Accessories
VM and VM WB Precoat Adhesives 
are used to prime acceptable substrates 
prior to the application of the VM60 
membrane.

VM Liquid Membrane is used to detail 
at all inside corners and penetrations to 
provide a smooth transition for the sheet 
membrane.

VM Masticseal is used to seal all sheet 
termination edges (i.e., top and bottom 
of foundation walls), cut edges and sheet 
“T”-joints.

Limitations

as pond and/or tank liners and is not to 
be left exposed for extended periods of 
time.

pitch products or products containing 
polysulfide polymers should be avoided.

based and must not be allowed to freeze.

grade, vertical waterproofing 
applications only. For all other 
waterproofing (and roofing) applications, 
Hydrotech recommends Monolithic 
Membrane 6125®.

Composition and Materials
VM60 sheet membrane combines a 
membrane (56 mils thick), composed 

of a specially formulated blend of 
refined asphalts and rubber polymer 
compounds, with a high density, 
crosslaminated, white, polyethylene film 
(4 mils thick).The membrane extends ½ 
inch beyond the film along both long 
sides of each roll. 

VM60 membrane is rolled with a 
disposable,poly film release sheet to 
prevent blocking in the rolls.

high tack, rubber based adhesives in 

regulations exist.

VM Liquid Membrane is a two 
component, elastomeric, extended rubber 
urethane membrane. 

VM Masticseal is a rubberized asphalt 
mastic.

V M 6 0  SHEET  WATERPROOF ING  MEMBRANE 
™

�

®

TABLE 1

Property Test Method  Results

Color

Thickness 60 mils

Tensile Strength (membrane) ASTM D 412 (mod. Die C) 325 psi

Tensile Strength (film) ASTM D 882 6500 psi

Elongation (ult. fail of membrane) ASTM D 412 600%

0.03 perms

ASTM C 836 No Effect

ASTM D 1000 10.0 lb/in width

ASTM D 1000 8.0 lb/in width

ASTM D 146 No Effect

ASTM E 154 50 lb

ASTM D 5385 231 head foot of 
water

Shelf Life Membrane
Liquid Membrane
Accessories

2 years
1 year
1 year

Water Absorption ASTM D 570 0.1 %

Excellent resistance to acids, alkalies, salts and fungi 
in soil

mixing)



Container/Weight/Coverage
The standard roll size for VM60™ Sheet
Membrane is 48" x 50' (1.22m x 15.2m)
and each roll weighs 80 pounds. Smaller 
pre-cut rolls 12", 16" & 24" x 50' (0.3, 
0.4 & 0.6m x 15.2m) are available for 
detailing corners. Each standard roll 
covers approximately 180 square feet 
(16.7m2) when the side and end laps are 
included. 

gallon pails (18.9 l), weighing 37 pounds 

are to be brushed or rolled to a properly 
prepared substrate at a rate of 250-350 
square feet/gallon (6-8.4 m2/l).

The Liquid Membrane is packaged in 
2 gallon pails that contain 1.9 gallons 

(8.2 kg). When used as fillets at inside 
corners, the membrane is spread at a 
rate of 65-75 lineal feet/gallon (5.2-6 
m/l).

When a 90 mil (2.3 mm) thick 
application is to be applied, the coverage 
is 17 square feet/gallon (.41m2/l).

The Masticseal is packaged in 5 gallon
pails (18.9 l) or 12-30 ounce tubes  
(0.89 l) weighing 48 pounds (21.8 kg)/
pail and 27 pounds (12.2 kg)/carton. 
The pails will cover approximately 100 
feet/gallon (8 m/l) with a 1 inch (2.5 
cm) wide bead and each tube will cover 
65 feet (20m) with a ½ inch (1.27 cm) 
wide bead.

3. Technical Data
Typical physical properties of VM60™ 
Sheet Waterproofing Membrane are 
shown in Table 1. 

4. Installation

Material Storage
Membrane and Accessories should be
unloaded and stored on site carefully.
Cartons and containers must be protected
from sparks, flames, excessive heat and 
cold and stored in a well ventilated area. 

stack pallets. All cartons should be stored 
on pallets and covered to protect against 
water damage.

Application Temperatures
VM60 Sheet Waterproofing Membrane 
and all accessories are to be applied 
at ambient temperatures above 25°F 
(-4°C). The VM60 membrane should not 
be applied at temperatures above 105°F 
(40°C).

Surface Preparation
All concrete surfaces must be smooth, 
clean, dry, free of voids, protrusions, 
loose material, laitance, dust, oil, grease 
and unapproved curing compounds 
or form release agents. Hydrotech 
recommends a concrete cure/dry time of 
7 days minimum prior to the application 
of the membrane. In addition, the 
membrane should not be installed until 
at least one full day after the forms are 
stripped from a concrete foundation wall.

the total removal of the existing 
waterproofing down to clean, bare 
concrete.

Joints in concrete block substrates should 
be struck flush with the block surface, not 
raked.

Any exposed metal surfaces shall be 
free of paint, oil, rust or any other 
contaminant.

Wood substrates should be composed 
of pressure treated or marine grade 
materials. Creosote treated wood is not 
acceptable.

Detailing
Most detailing will be accomplished 
using VM Liquid Membrane and VM60 
Sheet Waterproofing Membrane pre-
cut or field-cut sheet detail strips. The 
application of the Liquid Membrane is 
necessary to provide smoother transitions 
for the sheet membranes and should 
be done prior to the application of the 

 No area to receive 
the Liquid Membrane should be primed 
with the Precoat Adhesive.

Fillets of VM Liquid Membrane should 
be applied to all inside corners (vertical 
and horizontal) to provide a minimum 
¾ inch (19mm) face at 45 degrees. The 

be thoroughly mixed with a paddle 
attached to a minimum ½ inch drill for 
3-5 minutes. Mix only enough Liquid 
Membrane that will be used within 60 
minutes.

The fillets can be formed using small 
mason trowels or even wood tongue 
depressors. The Liquid Membrane should 
be allowed to cure for a minimum of 45 
minutes prior to covering with the sheet 
membrane. A 12 inch (30.5cm) wide 
VM60 membrane detail strip should be 
installed to all inside corners, over the 
Liquid Membrane fillet, centered into the 
corner.

In lieu of the 12 inch detail strip, the 
Liquid Membrane can be applied 6 inches 
in both directions from the corner fillet at a 
thickness of 90 mils (2.3 mm).

All outside corners are to be covered with 
a 12 inch (30.5 cm) VM60 membrane 
detail strip centered over the corner.

All cracks greater than 1/16 inch (1.6 
mm) and cold joints should be sealed with 
Liquid Membrane and a 12 inch wide 
sheet membrane detail strip centered over 
the crack/joint.

Expansion joints (<2 inches) must be 
filled/sealed with a proprietary joint 
filler, water stop or sealant flush with the 
substrates surface. An 8 inch wide strip of 
sheet membrane should be laid over the 
joint, centered and inverted (turned upside 
down). This is to be followed by a 12 inch 
wide detail strip of sheet membrane also 
centered over the joint.

Liquid Membrane fillets are to be installed 
at the base of all penetrations (i.e., pipes, 
vents).

Liquid Membrane can also be used to 
correct slight deficiencies in the concrete 
surface (i.e. bug holes, rough concrete).

Priming

should be applied to all surfaces to receive 
the VM60 sheet membranes at a rate of 
250-350 square feet/gallon (6-8.4 m2/l) 
with a brush or short nap roller. Apply 

covered with membrane in the same day. 
Surfaces primed that are left overnight 
should be re-primed prior to sheet 

to dry prior to the application of the 
sheet membrane (typically about 20-30 

an aggressively tacky surface.

Sheet Installation
VM60 Sheet Waterproofing membrane is
typically installed in the full 48 inches 
width of the rolls but may be cut to 
narrower widths. All side laps must be 
a minimum of 2½ inches (6.4 cm) and 
should be staggered one sheet to the next.
NOTE: “Side” lap seams occur along the 
50 foot length of a roll; “End” lap seams 
occur along the 4 foot width of a roll.

Vertical wall installations require that a 
careful effort be made to assure complete 
adhesion of the sheet membrane to the 
primed surfaces. At a minimum, the 
installation is a two-man job.



The sheet membrane may be installed 
with the roll positioned vertically or 
horizontally across a wall’s surface. 
When installed vertically, it is 
recommended for ease of installation that 
the sheet membrane be installed in 8 foot 
(2.4 m) high sections. While horizontal 
applications technically can be installed 
using the entire length of the roll, it is also 
recommended that 8-10 foot lengths be 
cut from the roll to ease installation.

In either case, the first sections of 
membrane should be installed from the 
base of the wall such that the laps from 
one sheet to the next, continuing up the 
wall, shingle downward. Further, ALL 
LAP SEAMS ARE TO BE HAND ROLLED 
USING A STANDARD SEAM ROLLER.

: Start by marking 
the wall, measuring from the wall’s base, 
with a level line at the height of the first 
lift of membrane (recommended 8 feet). 
Cut a length of sheet membrane from 
the full roll equal to the first lift height 
plus the distance across the top of the 
footing down the face. Hold the sheet up, 
allowing the balance to hang, and begin 
peeling the release sheet off the back 

approximately 6 inches of the release 
sheet and set the membrane against the 
wall, lining the top edge with the level 
line established on the wall. Use heavy 
hand pressure to secure the sheet to the 
wall and smooth out the sheet surface. 

wall, continue peeling the release sheet 
down from the backside of the membrane 
securing and smoothing the membrane 
to the wall as you work down the wall 
surface. The membrane should be 
installed minimizing wrinkles and folds. 
At the base corner of the wall, extra care 
should be taken to fully set the membrane 
tightly into the corner and over the Liquid 
Membrane fillet. Gaps and “bridging” 
behind the membrane are to be avoided.

across the wall’s surface, as above, being 
sure to provide a minimum 2 ½ inch side 
lap over the previous sheet edge. NOTE: 
Be sure to cut every other sheet length 
4 - 6 inches shorter or longer than the 
starting sheet length to assure that all 
end laps wind up being staggered. For 
subsequent lifts of membrane, establish a 
level line up the wall as before, this time 
being sure to allow for a 6 inch wide 
shingled end lap over the sheet edge 
below.

 Start by marking 
the wall, measuring from the wall’s base, 
with a level line at the height of the first 

lift of membrane (equal to the width of the 
roll - 4 feet). Cut a manageable length 
of sheet membrane from the full roll and 
re-roll the cut length. Stand the rolled sheet 
up and begin peeling the release sheet 
off the back along the vertical side edge. 

set the sheet against the wall using heavy 
hand pressure to secure the sheet to the 
wall and smooth out the sheet surface. 

continue peeling the release sheet from the 
backside of the membrane, unrolling the 
sheet as you go, securing and smoothing 
the membrane to the wall as you work 

the horizontal sheet edge lined up with the 
level line established.

NOTE: Installing the membrane in 
this manner (horizontally) requires the 
installation of 2 membrane detail strips 
in the corner where the wall and footing 
meet. 

the wall’s surface, as above, being sure to 
provide a minimum 6 inch end lap over 
the previous sheet edge.

For subsequent lifts of membrane, establish 
a level line up the wall as before, this 
time being sure to allow for a 2 ½ inch 
wide shingled side lap over the sheet 
edge below. In addition, be sure that the 
6 inch end laps are staggered between 
subsequent lifts.

Mastic Application
A ½ - 1 inch bead of VM Masticseal 
should be applied at all membrane 
sheet edges that required cutting (i.e., 
at flashings, etc.), all horizontal sheet 
termination edges (i.e., top and bottom of 
a wall/footing) and along all seam edges 
(horizontal and vertical) that occur at the 
junction of the wall and footing extending 
12 inches in both directions. 

Masticseal should be applied to all 
terminations at the end of each day’s 
work.

Protection
VM60 should be protected and backfill 
placed immediately. Extruded polystyrene 
insulation, ¼ inch minimum fanfold, 1 inch 
minimum expanded polystyrene boards 
are recommended for vertical installations. 
Drainage products (i.e., Hydrodrain® 
1000, 420 or ThermaFlo™) with integral 
protection sheets can also be used to 
provide protection as well as drainage. A 
construction adhesive compatible with both 
the protection and the sheet membrane 

Precautions 
The VM60 Sheet Waterproofing 
Membrane can be adversely affected by 
ultra-violet light. The waterproofing sheets 
must be protected from exposure to the 
sun as soon as possible.

coating and would be harmful or fatal 
if swallowed. It is marked as a red label 
product due to its flash point.

Adequate ventilation is essential. When 
using in confined spaces (i.e., bottom of 
a foundation) mechanical ventilation is 
strongly recommended. 

Do not use near open flame. Avoid 
breathing solvent vapors and prolonged 
contact with skin. Do not take internally. 
If swallowed, do not induce vomiting. 
Contact a physician immediately. Keep 
out of reach of children. Keep containers 
covered when not in use. Do not thin. 
Dispose of in accordance with local and 
state and federal requirements. User 
must read container labels and Material 
Safety Data Sheets for health and safety 
precautions prior to use.

5. Availability and Cost
VM60 is readily available through 
Hydrotech representatives worldwide. 

Contact Hydrotech or a representative for
pricing information. 
 
6. Guarantees
Contact Hydrotech for specific warranty
information.

7. Maintenance
None required.

8. Technical Services
Technical support is provided by a 
trained network of sales representatives 
and Hydrotech’s Technical Services 
Department.



American Hydrotech, Inc.

800.877.6125; 312.337.4998
312.661.0731 (fax)
www.hydrotechusa.com

Hydrotech Membrane Corporation

800.361.8924; 514.354.6649 (fax)
Toronto 800.668.8963; 905.471.6699 (fax)

The information given is based on data and knowledge considered to be true and correct and is offered for the user’s consideration, investigation and verification. 
The information is subject to change without notice. The determination of suitability and fitness of the products and the application described herein for a particular 

all goods sold by American Hydrotech, Inc. for the United States and abroad, or Hydrotech Membrane Corporation for Canada, including the express disclaimer 
by each company of the implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. Nothing stated herein is intended to infringe on any patent or 
copyright. 
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ISOMETRIC

TIE-IN WITH MM6125 STANDARD

TOP OF FOUNDATION WALL TERMINATIONS

LIQUID MEMBRANE (FILLETS) 
AT ALL INSIDE CORNERS

VM60 MEMBRANE

LIQUID MEMBRANE (90 MILS)
AS ALTERNATE TO DETAIL STRIPS

PRECOAT ADHESIVE NOT TO BE
APPLIED UNDER LIQUID MEMBRANE

PRECOAT ADHESIVE UNDER
ALL SHEET MEMBRANE

VM60 DETAIL STRIPS

MASTICSEAL AT
ALL TERMINATIONS

MASTICSEAL WITH 12
INCHES OF WALL/FOOTING
CORNER

HYDROFLEX 30 OR OTHER APPROVED PROTECTION COURSE

MONOLITHIC MEMBRANE 6125

FLEX-FLASH F OR UN REINFORCING

VM60 MEMBRANE

APPROVED PROTECTION
LAYER

APPROVED PROTECTION LAYER

VM MASTICSEAL

VM MASTICSEAL

TERMINATION BAR WITH
FASTENED 12" O.C. (max.)

VM60 MEMBRANE

VM60 MEMBRANE

APPROVED PROTECTION LAYER

4 in. min.


